CONTRA
COSTA
QOU\lY
Employees’ Retirement Association
AGENDA

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING

FIRST MONTHLY MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
November 4, 2015 The Willows Office Park
9:00 a.m. 1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, California

NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE MEETING
ONE OR MORE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT FOR THE
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE BOARD MEETING, SCHEDULED FOR NOVEMBER 4,
2015, VIA TELECONFERENCE AT THE LOCATION LISTED BELOW, WHICH IS
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.

TELECONFERENCE LOCATION:

THE LODGE AT TORREY PINES
HUGHES COTTAGE

11480 N. TORREY PINES ROAD
LA JOLLA, CA 92037

THE LOCATION LISTED ABOVE IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC, INCLUDING
THOSE WITH DISABILITIES.

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:
1. Pledge of Allegiance.
2. Accept comments from the public.
3. Approve minutes from the September 23, 29 and 30, 2015 Board meetings.
4.  Routine items for November 4, 2015.
Approve certifications of membership.
Approve service and disability allowances.
Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required.

Approve death benefits.
Accept Asset Allocation Report

P00 o

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting.




CLOSED SESSION

5.

The Board will go into closed session under Gov. Code Section 54957 to consider
recommendations from the Medical Advisor and/or staff regarding the following
disability retirement applications:

Member Type Sought Recommendation
a. Kristine Bouchard Non-Service Connected Non-Service Connected
b. Arturo Cruz Non-Service Connected Non-Service Connected
Cc. Matthew Parkinen Service Connected Service Connected
d. Peter Wells Service Connected Service Connected

The Board will continue in closed session to consider the Hearing Officer’s
recommendation regarding the disability application for James Lee.

The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section
54956.9(d)(2) to confer with legal counsel regarding anticipated litigation (two cases).

The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section
54956.9(d)(1) to confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation:

Montgomery v. Montgomery, Solano County Superior Court, Case No. FFL 128451

OPEN SESSION

9.

10.

11.

Consider and take possible action regarding the collection of pension overpayments
from Contra Costa County due to its erroneous reporting of panel management pay as
pensionable compensation.

Educational Presentation on Brown Act Fundamentals

Miscellaneous

a. Staff Report

b. Outside Professionals’ Report
c. Trustees’ comments

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting.




CONTRA
"CCCERA
COUNTY
Employees’ Retirement Association

MINUTES

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES

SECOND MONTHLY MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
September 23, 2015 The Willows Office Park
9:00 a.m. 1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, California
Present: Debora Allen, Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie
Kroll, John Phillips, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey, Jerry Telles and Russell Watts
Absent: Will Pigeon
Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer, Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement

Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief Investment Officer; Alexis
Cox, Retirement Benefits Manager; and Christina Dunn, Retirement Administration

Manager
Outside Professional Support: Representing:
Jeff Rieger Reed Smith LLP

1. Pledge of Allegiance

Telles led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No members of the public offered comment.

3. Approval of Minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the June 10, 2015 Board meeting with a correction to
remove Watts from voting on Item 7 as he was not present at the meeting. (Yes: Andersen,
Holcombe, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the July 23, 2015 Board meeting. (Yes: Andersen,
Holcombe, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Allen, Gordon and Hast were present for subsequent discussion and voting.

CLOSED SESSION
The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957.6.

The Board moved into open session.



Page 2
September 23, 2015

There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54957.6.

Presentation from staff on Real Asset commitment pace

Price and Youngman reviewed their memo regarding CCCERA'’s real asset commitment schedule
noting the pace has been slower than originally thought and staff now recommends a practice of 75%
over-commitment to direct funds, and a 100% over-commitment to fund of funds. This is a change
from the recommendation the Board received on November 25, 2014 which was to over-commit by
75% for both direct and indirect funds.

Presentation from staff and Aether regarding proposed Aether IV Commitment — Troy Schell,
David Rhoades, Sean Goodrich

Youngman noted this is a follow — on fund to Aether Real Assets III and will follow a similar
strategy of investing in real asset funds. Staff recommendation is to commit $50 million to the
Aecther Real Assets IV strategy.

Rhoades introduced the team and provided an overview of Aether noting they are currently raising
their fourth fund.

Goodrich discussed commodity prices noting that they focus on agriculture, energy and metals. He
noted they believe that prices will increase and they will be able to take advantage of this in their
funds. He also discussed Aether’s biases noting that they are biased towards smaller funds,
operational experience and are not dependent on financial leverage or technological innovation.

Schell reviewed what differentiates Aether noting their research database is customized solely for
real assets due diligence and monitoring, their sole focus on real assets investments and their unique
approach to investment sourcing.

Rhoades reviewed the returns of the Aether Real Asset (ARA) funds as of March 31, 2015 and June
30, 2015 noting that for June 30" the rate of returns were — ARA I: 6.7%, ARA II: -0.2%, ARA III:
6.3%, and ARA III Surplus: 9.1%.

Consider and take possible action to commit to Aether Real Assets IV

It was M/S/C to commit $50 million to Aether Real Assets IV strategy subject to a successful on-site
visit, legal review and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute the necessary contracts.
(Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Telles was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting.

8.

Presentation from staff and Siguler Guff regarding proposed Siguler Guff DREOF II Co-
investment Fund commitment — Matt Brewer, Jim Corl

Price and Youngman reviewed their memo noting this new fund is a co-investment fund, offered
primarily to the investors in Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Fund II.

Prior to their presentation, Siguler Guff waived the confidentiality disclaimer on the presentation
materials.

Brewer noted this offering is a small distressed real estate investment fund that is being offered to
current investment partners in the Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Fund II. He stated they are
close to 80% committed in the current fund and have additional opportunities that they would like to
take advantage of. There is a two year investment period with this co-investment fund.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 3
September 23, 2015

Corl provided an update on the current investments noting Fund I and II have done very well. He
noted that Fund II will continue the strategy used in Fund I and will focus on opportunities Siguler
Guff believes present the best value characteristics. He also discussed the fees noting fees are
charged on investment capital only.

Consider and take possible action to commit to Siguler Guff DREOF II Co-investment Fund

After a discussion on fees, it was M/S/C to commit $25 million to Siguler Guff DREOF II Co-
investment Fund subject to a successful on-site visit, legal review and authorize the Chief Executive
Officer to execute the necessary contracts. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips,
Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts).

Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with McLagan
for an investment compensation study

Strohl reviewed her memo noting on August 12, 2015, the Board of Retirement authorized the CEO
to execute a contract with Koff and Associates for a total compensation and classification study.
McLagan is a consulting firm that specializes in compensation studies for investment classifications.

It was M/S/C to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with McLagan for an investment
compensation study at a total cost of $15,000. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips,
Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts)

Consider and take possible action to accept the actuarial valuation of future annual costs of
proposed changes to Other Post Employment Benefits as provided by Milliman

Dunn introduced John Botsford of Milliman.
Milliman waived the confidentiality disclaimer on the presentation materials.

Botsford reviewed his report regarding the proposed retiree health benefit changes effective January
1, 2016. He discussed the assumptions and methodology used to create the different scenarios.

It was M/S/C to accept the actuarial valuation of future costs of proposed changes to Other Post
Employment Benefits as provided by Milliman. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll,
Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts)

Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff:

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member at the CRCEA Fall Conference,
CRCEA, October 19-21, 2015, Stockton, CA. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll,
Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts).

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member and 1 staff member at the
Educational Forum, CalPERS, October 26-28, 2015, San Jose, CA. (Yes: Allen, Andersen,
Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts).

c. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of all Board members and appropriate staff at the
SACRS Fall Conference, SACRS, November 17-20, 2015, San Diego, CA. (Yes: Allen,
Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts).

Miscellaneous

(a) Staff Report —



Page 4
September 23, 2015

Strohl introduced Alexis Cox, the new Benefits Manager; she gave an update on the total
compensation and classification study; and, she asked that Board members let her know if they
are unable to attend the September 29" and 30" Board meeting.

Dunn reported there was an ADP kickoff meeting to set up payroll; the AFSCME MOU will be
coming to the Board at the October 7, 2015 meeting; and, possible buyers will be touring the
building at the end of the week.

Price gave an update on on-site visits; and, stated the September 29" and 30™ Board meetings
will be at the Pleasant Hill Community Center.

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -
None

(c) Trustees’ comments —
Holcombe reported he attended the CALAPRS Trustee Roundtable and felt it was excellent.
Rodrigues stated he felt the CALAPRS Trustee Roundtable was the best one he has attended.

Gordon stated he appreciated the comments regarding the CALAPRS Trustee Roundtable.

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, Rodrigues,
Smithey and Watts)

John Phillips, Chairman Scott Gordon, Secretary



CONTRA
"CCCERA
COUNTY
Employees’ Retirement Association

MINUTES

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES

INVESTMENT STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT McHale Room
WORKSHOP - DAY 1 Pleasant Hill Community Center
September 29, 2015 320 Civic Drive
9:00 a.m. Pleasant Hill, California
Present: Debora Allen, Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie

Kroll, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Gabe Rodrigues and Russell Watts
Absent: Todd Smithey and Jerry Telles
Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer, Timothy Price, Retirement Chief

Investment Officer; Karen Levy, Retirement General Counsel; Wrally Dutkiewicz,
Retirement Compliance Officer; and Christina Dunn, Retirement Admin/HR Manager.

Outside Professional Support: Representing:
Harvey Leiderman Reed Smith LLP
Edward Hoffman Verus Consulting Group
Scott Whalen Verus Consulting Group

1. Pledge of Allegiance

Allen led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No members of the public offered comment.

3. Presentations regarding Investment Strategy Development

Price gave a brief overview of the format for the day and the goals of the workshop.
Andersen and Pigeon were present for subsequent discussion and voting.

Whalen reviewed the framework, goals and objectives for the workshop. He also reviewed the
status of the integrated consulting process.

Leiderman distributed “Fiduciary Considerations for Establishing Prudent Asset Allocation.” He
reviewed fiduciary duties noting the Board needs to know the long term objectives and goals of the
trust when deciding how to invest. He also reviewed best practices to assure prudent investment
processes and fiduciary considerations in setting asset allocations.

Price distributed “Developing a Statement of Investment Philosophy: Stage 1.” Whalen reviewed
the purpose of the Statement of Investment Philosophy. He reviewed the Plan purpose, goals &
constraints, the portfolio design and construction, and performance evaluation.



Page 2
September 29, 2015

Dr. Ashby Monk, Stanford University, gave a presentation on the production of investment returns
and thinking outside of the box.

Gordon was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting.

Price distributed “CCCERA’s Investment Evolution”. Whalen reviewed the long-term policy
allocations and the historical actual asset allocation. He also reviewed the historical strategy
selections over the last 10 years noting 12 strategies were terminated and 16 new strategies were
selected.

Price distributed “Understanding, Recognizing, and Overcoming Behavioral Biases.” Whalen
reviewed traditional vs. behavioral finance and why it matters. He also discussed decision making
and monitoring managers.

Andersen was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting.

Price distributed “Goals and Constraints.” Hoffman discussed the context when thinking about goals
and constraints and achieving goals within regulatory, public, media and self-imposed constraints.

Price distributed “Developing a Statement of Investment Philosophy: Stage 2.” Whalen reviewed
the session objectives. The Board discussed the possible wording for the portfolio design and
construction. The Board also discussed the current approach and an alternative approach to
performance evaluation.

Whalen re-capped the day and gave a preview of Day 2.

4. Miscellaneous

(a) Staff Report — None
(b) Outside Professionals’ Report - None

(¢) Trustees’ comments — None

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting. (Yes: Allen, Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips, Pigeon, Rodrigues
and Watts)

John Phillips, Chairman Scott Gordon, Secretary



CONTRA
"CCCERA
COUNTY
Employees’ Retirement Association

MINUTES

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES

INVESTMENT STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT McHale Room
WORKSHOP — DAY 2 Pleasant Hill Community Center
September 30, 2015 320 Civic Drive
9:00 a.m. Pleasant Hill, California
Present: Debora Allen, Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie

Kroll, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Gabe Rodrigues and Russell Watts
Absent: Todd Smithey and Jerry Telles
Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer, Timothy Price, Retirement Chief

Investment Officer; Karen Levy, Retirement General Counsel; Wrally Dutkiewicz,
Retirement Compliance Officer; and Christina Dunn, Retirement Admin/HR Manager.

Outside Professional Support: Representing:
Harvey Leiderman Reed Smith LLP
Edward Hoffman Verus Consulting Group
Scott Whalen Verus Consulting Group

1. Pledge of Allegiance

Holcombe led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No members of the public offered comment.
Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting.

3. Presentations regarding Investment Strategy Development

Whalen gave a brief review of Day 1 and an introduction to Day 2.

The Role of Asset Classes was distributed. Hoffman gave an introduction to the role of asset
classes. He discussed the different aspects of building portfolios and market environments. He also
discussed the roles and return drivers for equities, fixed income and real assets/alternatives.

Whalen gave an overview of the session objectives. He reviewed the Asset/Liability Study, the
summary findings, historical experience, deterministic projections and stochastic projections. He
reviewed investment models and investment model forecasts.

Price distributed “Enterprise Risk Tolerance Assessment.” Whalen discussed risk elements and
mitigating factors. He defined enterprise risk as an aggregation of many types of risk elements and



Page 2
September 30, 2015

offsetting mitigating factors which must be assessed individually. He discussed investment risk,
liability risk, decision risk, and potential mitigating factors.

Gordon was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting.

Hoffman distributed “Investment Strategy Evaluation”. He gave an overview of modeling
techniques including mean-variance analysis, asset-liability modeling, scenario analysis, stress tests
and risk decomposition.

Price reviewed an example of a Functionally Focused Portfolio (FFP).

Hoffman reviewed a forecasted risk/return for different portfolio types and an investment model
evaluation summary.

The Board discussed different models and estimated timelines in changing our asset allocation. It
was noted investment policy implications could take up to 2 years.

The Board directed staff to create a risk-balanced 50/25/25 investment model and a refined
Functionally Focused Portfolio (FFP) model. A special meeting may be scheduled in December to
review and select a final asset mix.

Whalen reviewed the workshop goals and objectives and the next steps — an asset allocation
workshop and an IPS/detailed implementation plan review.

4. Consider and take possible action to accept new target asset allocation

No action was taken.

5. Miscellaneous

(a) Staff Report — None
(b) Outside Professionals’ Report - None

(c) Trustees’ comments — None

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips, Pigeon,
Rodrigues and Watts)

John Phillips, Chairman Scott Gordon, Secretary



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Page 1

Items requiring Board Action

A.

B.

C.

BOARD OF RETIREMENT

Certifications of Membership — see list and classification forms.

Service and Disability Retirement Allowances:

Name

Adamich, Donlon
Capozzo, John
Ciriaco, Marietta
Cowden, Debbie
Eubanks, Kathleene
Gomez, Daniel
Graydon, Kenneth
Helie, John
Hornbeck, Beth
Kruger, Jean
Kumari, Sudesh
LaFramboise, Glenda
Mariner, Daniel
Mattox, Gregory
Perez, Maria
Pineda, Ana
Robles, Martha
Schwind, Norman
Sotelo, Eloise
Tantoco, Prescilla
Thomas, Leticia
Yu, Hui
Zarakov, Barbara

Disability Retirement Applications: The Board’s Hearing Officer is hereby authorized to

Number
63730
46892
69641
65609
D7830
49582
48683
D9500
51196
62870
63163
67426
52275
63241

D3414AP
64183
49420AP
60700
55817
55614
49471
69163
76128

Effective  Option
Date Tvpe
08/01/15 SR
08/14/15 SR
08/01/15 SR
08/19/15 SR
08/01/15 SR
08/01/15 SR
08/05/15 SR
08/20/15 SR
06/20/15 SR
08/01/15 SR
07/29/15 SR
07/17/15 SR
09/01/15 SR
09/13/15 NSCD
07/13/15 SR
08/01/15 SR
08/14/15 SR
08/07/15 SR
07/10/15 SR
07/17/15 SR
08/09/14  NSCD
03/31/15 SR
08/01/15 SR

issue subpoenas in the following cases involving disability applications:

Name

Chilimidos, Daryl Invalo

Currie, Lori
Fliehmann, Jessica
Halvorson, Rebecca

Group
I="Terl
O=Terl
I = Tier IL
S/A = Safety Tier A
S/C = Safety Tier C

Option
* = County Advance
Selected w/option

Number
64549
D9990
64903
72397

Filed Tvpe
10/16/15 SCD
09/11/15 NSCD

10/12/15  SCD
09/03/15  SCD

Type
NSP = Non-Specified
SCD = Seyvice Disability
SR = Service Retirement
NSD = Non-Service Disability

. Meeting Date
11/04/15
Agenda ltem

Nn\lomhn’#rgl 2015

Group Selected.
I Unmod
&I Unmod
I Unmod
I Unmod
I Unmod
SA Unmod
IT & III Unmod
ji Unmod
I&II Unmod
I &I Unmod
fiil Unmod
11 Unmod
SA Unmod
&I Unmod
1 Unmod
&I Unmod
I& 11 Unmod
SA Unmod
II&IIX Unmod
&I Unmod
&Il Unmod
111 Unmod
11 Option 2



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

BOARD OF RETIREMENT
Page 2 November 4, 2015
D. Deaths:
Name Date of Death Employer
Bradshaw, Edna 10/17/2015 Contra Costa Superior Court
Bruno, Verna 8/23/2015 Beneficiary
Christensen, Steven 10/14/2015 Contra Costa County

Cohen, Lorraine 10/23/2015 Contra Costa County
Cox, Lois 10/10/2015 Confra Costa County
Elswick, Patricia 9/23/2015 Contra Costa County
Emerson, Eve 8/5/2015 Contra Costa County
Funk, Edna 10/7/2015 Beneficiary
Gholson, Sandra 9/23/2015 Contra Costa County
Gleffe, Catherine 8/31/2015 Beneficiary
Hall, Eleanor 9/28/2015 Contra Costa County
Hancock, Margie 10/11/2015 Beneficiary
Hannan, Theresa 10/23/2015 Contra Costa County
Holbrook, Lillian 10/16/2015 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District
Jeffords, Oliver 10/22/2015 Beneficiary
Keck, Harold 10/8/2015 Contra Costa Superior Court
Lawrence, Florence 10/17/2015 Beneficiary
Lowery, Christell 6/29/2015 Contra Costa County
Malin, Hedwig 10/19/2015 Contra Costa County
Mc Neill, Tamyra 10/24/2015 Contra Costa County
McCall, Patricia 9/15/2015 Contra Costa County
Paulson, Suesann 10/9/2015 Contra Costa County
Perez, Mary Joan 9/11/2015 Contra Costa County
Roe, Norma 7/24/2015 Contra Costa County
Royse, Barbara 9/10/2015 Contra Costa County
Sharrar, Michael 10/23/2015 Contra Costa County
Shinn, William 10/16/2015 Contra Costa County
Soloman, Stephen 9/20/2015 Beneficiary
Steele, Helen 9/16/2015 Contra Costa County
Winrow, Mallory 8/21/2015 Contra Costa County
KEY: Group Option Type
I=Tierl * = County Advance NSP = Non-Specified
I=Terld Selected w/option SCD = Service Disability
I = Tier IX SR = Service Retirement

S/A = Safety TierA
S/C = Safety Tler C

NSD = Non-Service Disabiilty



CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS

Meeting Date

11/04/15

Agenda ltem

#4a.
Employee Membership
Name Number Tier Date Employer
Aguilar, Hortencia 53172 il 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Alatorre, Michelle 82095 P5.2 09/01/15 [Contra Costa County
Alcantara, Darren 82162 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Aliano, Dominic 82081 P5.2 09/01/15 jContra Costa County
Alvarez, Matthew ‘81068 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Anderson, Keith 79924 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Aramburo, Edgar 82142 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Arias, Angel 80332 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Augustine, Freda 51041 11 09/01/15 [Contra Costa County
Bannerman, Nana 78367 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Barclay, John 79346 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra-Costa County
Barnett, Emily D3406 P4.3 09/01/15 |Central Sanitary District
Barrientos Barrios, Susan 81066 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Bechler, Raymond 82141 S/E 09/01/15 |[Contra Costa County
Bishop, Tawana 80281 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Boughtin, Casey 82164 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Buban, Maria 70466 1l 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Burchfield, Vienna 76922 P5.3 08/01/15 |Contra Costa County
- |Butler, Beverly 51132 ] 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Canela, Melissa 82032 P5.2 08/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Carrillo, Miriam 79799 P5.3 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Casados, Felicia 79545 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Charway, Priscilla 82186 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Chavarria-Fryar, Elaine 53040 ] 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Chua, Remington 80185 P5.3 09/01/15 [Contra Costa County
Cooper, Deldridge 70402 i 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Cortez, Sara 80770 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Cruz, David 82165 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Darcy, Patricia 81231 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Davi, Lorraine 82146 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
DeAlmeida, Ramani 53229 1 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Diaz, Adriana 656048 i 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Dorantes, Marisa 82110 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Duvall, Connie 81232 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Elliott, Ann 82057 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Evans, Khadeejah 82061 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Key:
I=Tier]l P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) S/A = Safety Tier A
11 =Tier Il PF4.3 = PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) S/C = Safety Tier C
II1 = Tier III  |P5.2 =PEPRA Tier 5 (2% COLA) S/D = Safety Tier D
P5.3 = PEPRA Tier 5 (3% COLA) S/E = Safety Tier E

Pagel




CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS

Employee Membership
Name Number Tier Date Employer
Figaro, Rashad 82166 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Fleming, Cheryl 82231 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Fleming, LeTanya 81076 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Fliehmann, Colin 76831 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Frank, Tanya 81077 P52 09/01/15 {Contra Costa County
Freedman, Julie 69957 1 09/01/15 |[Contra Costa County
Fussi, Sonja 82059 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Garcia, Andrea 82179 P5.2 09/01/15 |[Contra Costa County
Garcia-Espinoza, Adrian 78713 P5.2 09/01/15 |{Contra Costa County
Gipson, Roosevelt 81078 P5.2 08/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Gonzalez, Erika 72296 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Gonzalez, Noelia 53044 1] 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Gordon, Amy 55356 Hi 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Goundar, Marie 77114 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Gwaltney, Priscilla D9500 P5.3 09/01/15 |Superior Courts
Hammond, Marilyn 79935 P5.2 '09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Hanson, Consuelo 68274 ] 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Herald,; Faye 81376 P5.2 08/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Hernandez, Karen 79123 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Hilliard, Gena 81081 P5.2 09/01/15 |[Contra Costa County
Hoedt, Jillian 80709 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Hoppe, Timothy 82202 P4.3 09/01/15 |CCCERA
Horace, Brian 81788 S/D 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Huie, John D3406 | 09/01/15 |Central Sanitary District
Hurley, Patrick 82094 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Jimenez, Bryan 81597 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Jimenez, Janice 81162 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Jimenez, Valerie 82123 P4.3 09/01/15 |CCCERA
Jones I, Gregory 82167 P5.2 09/01/15 |[Contra Costa County
Kapisarov, John 82160 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Karr, Eryl 82185 P52 | 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Kidwell, Marie 82232 P5.2 09/01/15 |[Contra Costa County
King, Juliet 67280 P5.2 09/01/15 |[Contra Costa County
King-Lankford, Melissa 80273 P5.2 08/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Kwok, Kimberly 80475 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Laing, Brian 82158 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Key:

I =Tier I P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) S/A = Safety Tier A

11 =Tier IL P4.3 = PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) S/C = Safety Tier C

I = Tier IH |P5.2=PEPRA Tier 5 (2% COLA) S/D = Safety Tier D

P5.3 = PEPRA Tier 5 (3% COLA) S/E = Safety Tier E

Page 2




CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS

Employee Membership
Name Number Tier Date Employer
Lakin, Susan 82144 P5.2 09/01/15 iContra Costa County
Larez, Alejandro 80964 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
LaStrappe, Chandra 81362 P5.2 08/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Leach, Andrew D7274 S/D 09/01/15 |Moraga-Orinda Fire District
Lewis, Flynne 82125 P5.2 09/01/15 [Contra Costa County
Lewis, Phyllis 69732 P5.2 09/01/15 [Contra Costa County
Liang, Kenny 81835 P5.2 09/01/15 |[Contra Costa County
Lim, Dorothy 82143 P5.2 09/01/15 [Contra Costa County
Lopez, Diana 75282 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Luna, Julius 81744 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Macias, Anacleto 82065 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Magiq, Safia 80203 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Martinez, Fausto 71967 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Massey, Sharon 82049 P5.2 08/01/15 {Contra Costa County
Mata, Denise 54330 11 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
McFadden, Kimya 82145 P5.2 09/01/15 iContra Costa County
McGee, Eva 82070 P5.2 08/01/15 |Contra Costa County
McGuire, Eleanor 60905 H 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Mendoza, Elmer 82139 | P5.3 09/01/15 iContra Costa County
Mojica, Yolanda 82174 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Moody, Julie 70045 ] 09/01/15 |[Contra Costa County
Murillo, Jenny 82068 P5.2 08/01/15 iContra Costa County
Murphy, Melissa 82073 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Nattkemper, Alex 78923 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Ordaz Flores, Cuauhtemoq 82099 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Pacheco, Breanna 82189 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Pacheco, Grace 82176 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Peddycord, Daniel 82058 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Pei, Juan 82012 P5.3 09/01/15 {Contra Costa County
Perea, Lorena 71306 H 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Petersen, Daniel 81886 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Pickett, Victoria 82075 p5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Quezada, Manuela 75054 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Quintana, Robert 81588 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Ralls, Russell 81127 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Rassi, Mahdieh 75558 i 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Key:
1=Tierl Pd4.2 = PEFRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) S/A = Safety Tier A

TT=Tier Il |P4.3=PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) __|S/C =Safety Tier C
IIT = Tier I |P5.2 = PEPRA Tier 5 (2% COLA) _ |S/D = Safety Tier D
P5.3 = PEPRA Tier 5 (3% COLA) _ |S/E = Safety Tier E

Page 3




CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS

Employee Membership
Name Number Tier Date Employer
Reed, Tyefa 82072 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Rios, Maria 68282 11 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Robles, Nadia 82180 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Roche, CaNaya 81063 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Rosillo, Maria 69646 ] 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Roubidoux, Adam 82071 P5.2 08/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Ruvalcaba, Norma 72722 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Saucer, Latonya 51860 1] 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Schlein, Karen 81146 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Shah, Yusuf 82055 P5.2 09/01/15 |[Contra Costa County
Siliezar-Ramos, Patricia 78942 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Silva, Maryanne 82015 P5.2 09/01/15 {Contra Costa County
Simons, Demario 82147 P5.2 09/01/15 [Contra Costa County
Sims, Felicia 82184 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Smith, Cynthia 74531 m 09/01/15 jCentra Costa County
Smith, Danaya 76378 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Smith, Jeffery 79979 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Sonico, Herma 50073 HI 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Spiegel, Joseph 82161 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Talwar, Indu 82112 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Thompson, Bobbie 66685 ] 09/01/15 |[Contra Costa County
Thompson, Jesse D3414 P4.3 09/01/15 |Rodeo Sanitary District
Tiamzon, Divina 48952 ] 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Troub, Jennifer 81369 P5.2 08/01/15 |Contra Costa County
" |Valentine, Quinton 82277 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Vang, Na Phue 82277 P5.2 08/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Vanjani, Rachna 79430 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Walker, Jamila 82170 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Walker, Nicole 81197 P5.2 09/01/15 [Contra Costa County
Warne, Thomas 64457 1] 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Watkins, Lonnie 81199 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Weathers, Nicole 82067 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Williams, Corniche 78302 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Williams, Trakema 81124  P5.2 09/01/15 {Contra Costa County
Williams, Yolanda 51923 ]] 09/01/15 {Contra Costa County
Winslow, Audrey 81221 P5.2 08/01/15 |{Contra Costa County
Key:

I=TierT

1P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA)

S/A = Safety Tier A

P43 = PEPRA Tier 4(3% COLA)

S/C = Safety Tier C_

I1=Tier Il
I = Tier II1

1P5.2.= PEPRA Tier 5 (2% COLA)

1S/D = Safety Tier D

P5.3 = PEPRA Tier 5 (3% COLA)

S/E = Safety Tier E

Page 4




CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS

Employee Membership
Name Number Tier Date Employer
Wong, Laura 82038 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Yarber, Claudia 81776 P5.2 09/01/15 {Contra Costa County
Younas, Silvia 81126 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Zavala, Joanna 74375 i 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Zheng, Zhonghua 82062 P5.2 09/01/15 |Contra Costa County
Ke.;v:

I=Tierl P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) S/A = Safefy Tier A

1 =Tier Il _ |P4.3= PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) S/C = Safety Tier C

fII="TierIII |P5.2=PEPRA Tier 5 2% COLA) S/D = Safety Tier D

P5.3 = PEPRA Tier 5 (3% COLA) S/E = Safety Tier E

Page 5




TIER CHANGES

Employee old New | Effective
Name Number Tier Tier Date Employer Reason for Change
Schectel, Lori D3406 P4.3 ! 7/1/2015 |Central Sanitary District Reciprocity
Key:
I=Tierl P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) S/A = Safety Tier A
I =Tier 11 P4.3 = PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) S/C = Safety Tier C
I =Tier IH_ |P5.2 = PEPRA Tier 5 (2% COLA) __|S/D = Safety Tier D

P5.3 =PEPRA Tier 5 (3% COLA) S/E = Safety Tier E

Page 6




80/87/50 HOWDY precy ‘3dUBULIONR ] - 8X0)53AY]Y 53]eF0 N
MEATY YEANA

S.LHSSY TV.LOL
sanyrunyroddQ j9yIeA [BI0L

sjusreamnby ®m ysed je3oL
Yueg jaang aelg
raamsuar], £yunod
SIUOUIISOAU] SAIIBUID}Y [B10],
93e38y Tedy 1ejoL
J9S8Y [e9Y [e}0],
1988y TBIY 9IBALIT
198SY IV ODIId
wmyay 12310], By uoldumom
swoou] Paxyg PIoIX YSIH TejoL
(are301ddy seroqoIN BMJ) S103834U] [BGOTD ZUBIIV
2uwoduy paxiyg [eqory 18107,
JudTIadRuE) 1985y pIeze]
9moodUY POXI OrIsouroq 1elolt,
spuny Lyrnjroddo 3qaq yqEyyoro],
, 112qqy proq
juomafeusyy j988y SYOBE UBWIPION
onopiIod . MIed, WVEH
wInjay 1e305 OOMWId
umE,.H JUDBWYSIATT Mﬁ.«mﬁom OID-14dvY
£mbg 130,
£3mbg reqord 1e3l0L,
(£3HmrerOA MO TRGOTH) o33 UT
sapjuniroddQ reqord wesppry
ofdey 38Ig
sapruniroddo reqorn weldxowdr
£ymby reuorjeUIAlUY (B0,

Iperg wreyIM
(ome) paoyrfg

Db £3mbg syysewmoq 1230,
Wis]] bpuaby XapaIa)d

S1/v0/] ] |smex 2Injosqy +530038 OOWId

%0 0 %00T 000‘65+‘80T1°L 000°6S¥'80T°L . %0°'00T

%8 OL %0 (meb1'0)  {(S62°S06'6) %9¢°0 000°LE£9‘ST S6Z'THS'QE %8°0

%T OX %0 %0Z°0 S0L'SPTVT %0L'0 000‘T6L'61 sez‘Ths‘es %S0

%040 000°16.L 61
%000 -

%ZTI OX %9 %66'0 OLB‘LLEOL %66°L 000‘0L6°LOS 0E1‘C26S°L6Y %0 L
%9T OL %0T %61°T SZ9°'109'v8 %69'ET | 000‘6S0‘EL6 SLE'LES'88S8 %S°'TT
" %DT OL %0 (%+80'0) [log6‘8L6'S) %T6'Y 000‘bbb 64E ogse6‘zzbiase %0'S

%26T)  [(G2p'9TT OVT) %ES'0 000'S6S°LE SLP TTL LLT %S’

(©01°0) |lec0'pPT L) %S59°'T 000'PSTLIT ££0'86E Y21 %8'T

%66°T 88518 THT %bL'T 000'869'v61 ehbeTees %8'0

%6 OL %2 (%z1'0) [lOS6‘SZ9°8) %88'Y 000°L6L'9YE 096'zTh'sSe %0°S
(%z1°0)  [l0s6'529'8) %88'Y 000°464'9vE 0S6‘CZy'SSE %0°S

%0E O %0Z %Z80 ove‘spb‘ss %Z8'PZT {000°'6LP‘POLT 091‘0£0°90L'T %0°bT
%110 0+9°880°8 %IT'p 000°Ley'C6T 09£'8€€'v¥8T %0'Y

%140 00Z‘09€‘08 %1402 000'2S0‘ZLY T 008°'169°1ZH'T %0°02

wz10) [(1z4'6598) %84T 000" 10+'97T 12L'090°SET %61

%01°0 98R8'SAO'TT %9L'Y ooo‘sgo‘see +11'686'0C¢ %09 P

%L1°0 988°88L°T1 %LLY 000°‘8LL8EE H11'686°02¢E %9

%00°0 000 %000 000‘t 0 %0°0

%9€E°0 96Z'17+'ST %96'S 000's6b'cey $0L'€L0'86E %9°G

%PT°0 £88'601°01 %bb'e  |000'689b1T LY1°6L8VET %E'E
%SS OL %0b | (%98°'2) |(sks‘gon‘coz) %b9'Zh |000'28Z°TE0'E sy8‘sve'vez'e %G sb
(%ets0) [lzsv'e16ES) %098'TT 000°Lev 128 LS OVELLY %E'CT

%00°0 £29'821 %0E°0 000%5¥° 12 LLE°SZE 1T %E'0

(%12°0)  {{09€ THL PT) %64 € 000°L68'692 09€£‘88E'¥8C %0

(6e1°0) |looc‘s61'6) %8¢ 000'6£1°SLT 09£'8EEb8T %0

{n1v0)  {(09e'101°6E) %65°E 000'LET'SST 09€£°8EE Y8BT %0t

(%eo'0) [(HS9'196'bb) %L6'6 000°‘GES 80L +89'96H €S L %9°01

(ore0)  [lree'sz81e) %66 000°€Z6'bSE LTE'8YL9LE %€'S

(wee0)  |lLee‘oer‘en) %16 000‘Z19'ESE LZE'BYL9LE %¢g’S

(%8+'1) |lpEL‘T6T1S0T) %Z1°'1Z | 000°02E°T0S T +EeLT18°909°T %9°'TT

(%S51°0) [(044'96970T) %582 000°LS520% 0LL'€SZ'e1T %0°€

{(%629°0)  {(09e‘zE0 bY) %8E'C | 000'00E'0¥T 09£°8EE V8T %0

(%e00)  |{09g‘5op ) %LE'E | D00°EL8TRT 09£'8EE¥RT %0t

(612°0)  |l0L4'89LpT) %6L'T 000884861 0LL'€ST'E1Z %0°¢

{(hoz'0)  |{LeL‘TOb'pT) %071 ¥ 000°‘102‘162 LEL€00'60E %E" b

{60z°'0)  |(2£L'89L'8T) %b0'b 000'S68'98¢2 L£1/£99'80€ %E'b

aduny {ropun) {ropunj 51088y anrep 8)0ESY jofey,
13A0 IBA0 renjoy IO IBIAT 3aodrey, Jo %

v-a g€-0 a fo } H A4

2100 bUjIaaW (2100} gosgur
SIOS[APY PIlEIowy

{axemura( vyj) sroulreg arenbg nosyoep
odoqoy

) 1YD-YyY g patedary

ST0Z ‘o€ 3dag :puy yiuopy Jupoday
000°65b‘R0OTLS

(INE A JOMIBIA]) §JISTY JUILID)

NOILLVOOTIV LISSY



000 $6L°002

rejor,
000'€68"' VL sjuatxyrurwrog Juppueymyng
000'€68' VL %84T 000°'T0V'9ZT 000°000'8€€E .
000'052'14 %80'0 000'S8L'¢ 000'000'SL ze/L1/60 v1/1e/et A pung Lyyumireddo 3qaq 3ufpyarzoy,
O00‘EYT'E %EL'D 000'848°18 000°000'09 0z/0g/80 Z1/10/80 AT puny Aypuniyoddp 399 JyAmyosor
%b1°0 000‘16Z°01 000'000'S2 91/0€/60 80/0€/60 I pung LruniroddQ jqaq 3oty
%S8°0 000°'L¥v 09 000'000'821 91/08/60 90/82/60 1 puny Ajpunjroddo j3qaQ Iy3iyoro],
Jusurjjunuo) | jJassy [ejo), anrep jusunpuiwo) | wopeuwray, | 477/4D 4q | uolsudlxy | uoreuUpMIIa), ayeq .
duipuwizing % PN TN Fuppunyg jodrey maN | wopjerosia Jo # jodrey, uorydaouy SINTWILSHTANT LEHJ ALVAI
000'122°88€'T _ 000'T$S'122 Tejor
000'Z9%'99¢ sjusunymwoy Jurpuweisng
000'Z9b‘g9e %69°E1 000'6S0°EL6 000'092'9¢E'T ‘001 '#41¢ 839F pue 3800 uopisinbow snyd 000*'009'01§ 201d ISBYIIN 44y
%¥1°0 00000001 0 xex OOT PLLIOTY 1901 SMOIIM
%.L0°1 000'200°9. 0 LIAY Teuopjenssju] OO8AANT
%LY'T 000'918'941 0 (Lrmy) jwewaRuveyy rejrdep ojueepy
000°9b6'e %8TT 000°TTT 16 000°000'eL 61/18/10 Z1/Te/10 IA PUNY YIAO0IN) 9 X0dU] TeFE]
000°'000°89 %00°0 0 000'000'89 zz/ot/ot b1/01/01 XI punyg Ljesy uwopiopn oraduy
000'SH1°81 %46'0 000'$2.499 000'000°08 81/1e/21 11/18/21 IMIA pung £3reay uoprop ofaduy
000°008‘s %9%'0 000'zLL'8T 000°'000'0% 0Z/0T/11 e€T/0T/11 11 pung ajejsy [eay wosmey
000'sL0‘08 %b8'0 000'sL1'8¢ 000'000'02 0z/1e/80 e1/1e/80 W: punyg -ddQ syejsg yeoy Possansiq Jnb oMy
000€$9"p1 %901 000'€92'S4 000°000'84 g1/1€e/CT 11/18/21 puny ‘ddQ a3u3sy reoy PISsIIISIQ PJnp IoMALY
000'000'S9 %00°0 0 000'000's9 £Z/82/70 s1/82/20 IIA punyg sspjrunizoddQ ajessy 189y 8ax3qB0
000'289's %LE°'T 000'ebb' L6 000°000°08 0zZ/ote/60 e1/0e/60 IA pung sepjuniteddp aje)sy reay] 2ex3qeO
%19°0 000'680'eh 000'000'08 91/18/21 T1/81/21 A pung seppunjroddo sjeisg ey earjqeQ
0DO‘STT %0€°0 000°€SE'1Z 000'000'sZ 1Z/0€/60 €1/¥1/80 AI DHAL jreym Fuog
%920 000'T08‘8T 000°'000°S4 st/oe/zt Lo/oe/eo I DAHA Jreym Suoy
%10°0 000'¢64 000°000°08 y10Z/18/21 a1 AAd LON z1/82/20 £0/81/20 II DAY Jreyp Fuoy
000'STE'YZ %LT°0 00040811 000'000°SE 1zZ/t0/21 $1/10/21 Al JAN] oogaauy
000'S0€'0Z %TE'0Q 000'8Lp'CT 000'000'SE 0T/10/80 €£1/10/80 T AW 0080AU]
%ZTH'0 000°0€5'62 000°000'S8 s1/18/71 Lo/oe/so 1T AFA1 00saAU]
%80°0 000'sZ9‘s 000‘000'08 v1oz/oe/v ap WX T PIg 11/08/%0 €0/zz/01 1 JHYI 098aAu]
%000 {ooo‘zel 0000829 60/1€/21 86/LT/90 II SI2UlIed dU0)SYIIBal
000°200'pS %+5'0 000'zae‘se 000°000'84 ze/1e/er e1/1e/L0 A "d1 ‘sxoujreq reyrde) ayeysy feey rM1a
00094461 %81°T 000086'18 000'000'001 91/0e/60 Lo/ieler AL ‘d] ‘szaujred rejrde) ojeisy resy Mg
000'856R1T %89°0 000'0Z4'st 000'000°SL 9roz/ot/9 f: 02 "X Z 81 v1/0¢e/90 s0/0€/90 11 "d~1 ‘sxewjred Tejrdep ejeisy resy (M
%50'0 000'006'C 000'000'0% s70Z/08/9 41 WX T P 60/TE/L0 66/T€/L0 I "J71 ‘sxaujred Tejpde) 23e3sy (eey (1A
jusunjpurneo | jassy rejol, anrep jusunpuwroy) | wopyeurmrag, | 47/4D Aq | worsusyxy | uwopyenpuiiag, a3eQq
Aurpueising 30 o 19N TBIW Aurpung 19dre], Moy | UOTILIOSY(Y Jo i jedrey, uorydeouy SLNIWLSTANT HLVISH TV

8107 ‘o¢ Jaqurardog Jo sy

SJUSWISAAU] AAIJBUISYY 9IRISH [BOY 93BALIL



000°186'bTT

*sr8a£ 32131 10 OM] [EUORIPPE UB I0] PaPUalxa aq LB SPUN] SLI0S ‘J2Aaamoy ‘pury 9u3 Jo uomepnbyr jo Sutuuidaq oys sy njod uopeunuIay, 19818], 81y,
“1a1enb Suppus ayy 13378 s1reo rejjdeo reuopippe Aue snyd yoyrenb Surpua 389781 9U} 5] MWNIOD aNTEA 13X I8N

Tejol
000°98€'L8 sjusurrroe) Jupuesino
000'98E LR %ES°0 000°968 LE 000°‘000°SZT
000°9£9'v8 %820 000'$+3'02 000°000'S4 oz/oe/1t eT/0e/11 snydmg 11T 9 111 IeYIoY
000'08.4°CE %bE 0 00Q°TS€E‘LT 000°000'0S 0Z/0€/90 €1/0€/90 X1 s301n0say fernyey 1ejjde;) punjuounruroy
juaurnrmInoey J988Y 8310, anyep Jjusurjjururod uorjsuuIad ]y, nﬂﬂ\kﬁu smn_. TOTHUIFRY EO«W.N«SE.—OH. aye(y
Auppuelsing Jo % JIRYe Fuipung jodrey, maN | wopjalosiq Jo ¢ jadre], uopjdasuy SLNHWILSTANI LSSV TVIN
000'008°50T rejor,
000°‘£91°08 sjueurjjurrey Juppuweising -
000°€971'08 %9€°0 000'LES'ST 000°'000°S11
000'000'84 %000 0 000'000'S4 02/01/60 s1/0t/60 sepjpunizoddg 3rpesp) LBrauy woprop oreduy
000'€91'S %9€°0 000°L£9'SZ 000°000'0t LI/TE/T0 01/8%/Z0 6007 PUNY JUSLIILIAUY dJBALLT 30IIHBO
Jusurjpuuroy) | 3388y 1830, anyes juswnuwoe) | wopeuiuual, | 41/40 Aq | uopsuajxg | uopyBUULIa], aReq
Fuppueising 3O % J3AreW Auppung jodre], may | vopaIosiq Jo # jodrey, uopjdaouy SHLLINALIOJIIO LENNVIL
000'748°886 Tejo)
T000'706° 02y sjuaupurnoy Surpweisyng
000'v06'0ZY %66°L 000°0L6'298 000'000'0£0°T
000'$8E'61 %G1°0 000'Stb'01 000'000'0E vz/1e/so y1/11/90 II pUny 2NUSAY UBIDO
000°6.4%'T %L5°0 000'2L28'0p 000'000'0€ 91/1€8/10 80/T€/10 pungoueg Ljpunururo) rajusdre)
0 %LT°0 0006161 000'000'SZ Lr/ielzt L0/oe/11 I urpersdq
000'294 %HT'0 000'666'6 000'000°01 Lr/1elet 60/62/2 11 puny Lymbyr very Aeg
0 %TIT'0 000'040‘8 00000001 8102/91/1 a1 X ZI®T  [ET/S1/10 $0/¥1/90 punyg 43mbg evsry Leg
0 2%00°0 - 000'000'S1 AUy 3se] pIos v1/81/20 +0/81/20 jusurysasuy safedoN
000'8L6'€ %EL'0 000'181°18 000'000'0S 0z/8%/90 0T/82/90 AL AJ8N A1
o] %08°0 000°548'98 000°000°'s9 L1/82/70 Lo/8zlCo T AISN ITH
0 %880 000'840'6€ 000'000'08 er/s1/90 g0/g1/90 IT SIS0 JTH
o] %10°0 000°128 000'000'0€ a1/80/1T a1 UXT pIe  |ZT/80/1T zo/80/11 1 80 R
000'645'991 %6%°0 000'SST'SE 000'000'002 gz/1e/so +1/80/90 sapyuniroddo VHADO0 Jynp emilg
000°65Z'8Y %0€°0 000°€61°'12 000'000'04 8%/L0/20 €1/L0/%0 L Lemyyey
000°e9€'61 %EL'0 000'628'C2 000'000'0% 9z/ve/so 1T/vz/s0 g Keayzeg
000°116'L %EE"0 000'vSH'ET 000°000°0E £z/92/21 80/92/21 800Z Lemyyeq
000°‘6+2'81 %.L8°0 000°‘589°'19 000'000'SZ1 1zZ/1€8/%0 86/60/11 Lnayqyeg
000'660'v% %EL'0 000°218°ST 000'000°'0% zz/1e/ot zr/1e/ot A Arepuocoag jaar)g SUTEpPY
000°2£9'21 %SE°0 000'S09'¥2 000°000'0€ 0z/18/21 80/18/21 11 Arepucoag jaaxg swepy
000'6L1'66 %8LT 000°'492'921 000°000'087 ALINIAEANI  |s6/22/21 B1aulred joang swepy
juawpuInie | 3988y rejoy, anpep jmeuwnypuiwro) | wopyeupmiay, | 41/4D Aq | wopsuajxy | wopjeupuray, ajeq
Auppummno Jo % JaqIBp Aurpung J23Ie], Ma)N | uopsrosiq IO # jadre), uopdaouy SLNAWLSTANY FATLVIRIH LTV

S10Z ‘o aquaidag J0 sV
SIUIUIISOAU] IAI}BUIIIY 91BISH [HOY IJVALLY






~.CCCERA

Employees' Retirement Association

MEMORANDUM

Date: November 4, 2015
To: CCCERA Board of Retirement
From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer

Karen Levy, General Counsel
Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer

Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action Regarding the Collection of Pension
Overpayments from the County Due to Its Erroneous Reporting of Panel
Management Pay As Pensionable Compensation.

Background

Panel Management Pay (PMP) refers to the delivery of primary care services through telephone
and electronic communication with patients and other members of the medical team and the
coordination of patient care including specialty care delivered at multiple locations. The duties
required to implement the Panel Management care model were performed outside of a
physician’s traditional work schedule. In 2011, the Contra Costa County Health Services
Department began to compensate those physicians who performed “Panel Management” duties
by paying them one (1) hour and thirty (30) minutes of on-call pay for each day worked at the
straight time rate (1.0) of the physician’s base rate of pay. This Panel Management Pay was paid
to physicians using the existing on-call pay earnings code D32 and pension contributions were
collected on the PMP amounts paid.

Pursuant to Government Code §31461(a) and (b)(3) CCCERA staff reviewed the conditions and
duties under which “Panel Management” on-call pay was paid to physicians and deemed that the
pay was not pensionable compensation as the payments were for additional services rendered by
physicians outside of normal working hours. Upon notification of this determination the County
performed the following corrective actions for its active CCCERA membership:

e Adopted Resolution No. 2013/372 on 9/24/2013 to ratify prior PMP payments and
establish a designated form of pay to replace the use of the D32 on-call pay code;

e Refunded pension contributions collected on behalf of its active members who received
PMP payments for the period 2011 through 2013 and issued corrected W2C for the 2011
and 2012 tax years. The 2013 contributions were refunded and then reported wages
adjusted for 2013 W2 tax form reporting;



Panel Management Pay — Overpayment Collection
Page 2 of 2

¢ Provided CCCERA with the County’s correction files including copies of the payment
warrants issued to all affected active members who received PMP pay.

In order to assist the County in correcting its error in reporting PMP under earn code D32, it was
deemed necessary for CCCERA to refund the interest that had accrued on the contributions
collected on the PMP payments to active membership. Staff prepared an analysis and calculated
the appropriate interest refund amounts for each member. The refund disbursements to PMP
payment recipients were completed by October 2014.

Pension Overpayments Attributed to the Inclusion of PMP in FAS

During the review of the data that had been provided by the County there were five (5) retired
members that were identified that had received PMP payments coded as D32 during their service
which, at the time of their retirement, had been included in their final average salary (FAS) for
pension calculation purposes.

Staff reviewed each of the five (5) pension calculations to determine what each retiree’s adjusted
prospective pension would be with the exclusion of the PMP payments in FAS and, to what
extent an overpayment had been made. Once these calculations had been finalized there were
four (4) retirees identified as having overpayments. Each of the retirees were notified via letters
dated August 7, 2015.

The following pension overpayments, net of contributions plus interest, were calculated as
having been paid to the retirees:

$ 35,821.66
29,969.58
27,763.22
16,495.73

$ 110,050.19

Recommendation

With respect to the overpayments paid to retirees that were attributed to the erroneous coding of
Panel Management Pay as a pensionable compensation item by the County, it is recommended
that the Board directs staff to seek from the County the amount of $110,050.19 representing the
amount of overpayment paid to four retirees and that staff is directed to return with an update
about the resolution of this issue vis-a-vis the County. This would be consistent with Internal
Revenue Service correction programs which provide that an appropriate correction method may
include having the employer contribute the amount of overpayment with appropriate interest to
the plan in lieu of seeking recoupment from plan participants and beneficiaries. Rev. Proc. 2015-
27, Sec. 3.02(3). Compliance with IRS corrections provisions would protect the tax-qualified
status of the plan.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



BROWN ACT
FUNDAMENTALS

Presented by:

Karen Levy, Esq.
General Counsel

November 4, 2015

CONTRA
o CCCERA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association



!%alph M. Brown %cs ;

Open Meetings Laws For Local
Legislative Bodies

* The Brown Act sets forth the rules regarding
open meetings held by local legislative

bodies

* The CCCERA Board of Retirement is subject
to the Brown Act

Government Code Section 54950 et seq. 2



P———

Purpose of the Brown Act

* To ensure that public agency actions are taken openly

* To ensure that public agency deliberations are done
openly

Government Code Section 54950



p———

Key Concepts

* Retirement Board meetings must be open and
accessible to the public

* A Board meeting agenda must be posted publicly

* During Board meetings, the public must be given an
opportunity to comment



!etirement Board meetings must

be open and accessible to the
public

* “Meeting” means any congregation of a majority of the
Retirement Board (i.e. five Retirement Board
members) at the same place and location (including
teleconference locations) to hear, discuss, deliberate or
take action on any item within the Retirement Board'’s

subject matter jurisdiction

Govt. Code § 54952.2(a) 5



Serial Meetings

* “Meeting” also means any serial use of communication,
personal intermediaries, or technological devices through
which a majority of the Board’s members discuss,
deliberate, or take action on an item

* For example, an unlawful “serial” meeting would occur if
Board member A e-mails Board member B about his or her
position on a Retirement Board issue. B forwards A’s e-
mail to C, who then forwards to D, who then forwards to E.
A mere series of e-mails or phone calls by a majority of the

Board about one of its business items violates the Brown
Act

Govt. Code § 54952.2(b)



,%irement Board I\/Iem%r‘s/

Attendance At Conferences

* A majority of the Retirement Board members may
attend a conference or similar gathering open to the
public that involves a discussion of issues of general
interest to the public or to other public pension
systems, so long as the majority of the board do not
discuss among themselves business that is within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Retirement Board

» Examples of such conferences include the State
Association of County Retirement Systems (SACRS)

and the California Association of Public Retirement
Systems (CALAPRS) conferences

Govt. Code § 54952.2(c)(2) -



P————

Attendance at Purely Social Events

* A majority of the Retirement Board members may
attend a purely social or ceremonial occasion, provided
that the majority of the Retirement Board members do
not discuss among themselves business that is within
the subject matter of the retirement board

Govt. Code § 54952.2(c)(5) 8



p———

Agenda Requirement

* At least 72 hours before a regular meeting of the
Retirement Board, an agenda containing a general
description of each item of business to be transacted,
including items to be discussed, and the time and
location of the meeting must be posted in a public
location and the CCCERA Internet Web site

Govt. Code § 54954.2(a) 9



Agenda Requirement

¢ If an item is not included on the agenda, the Retirement
Board may not act on or discuss that item, or add that item
to the meeting’s agenda as an urgency item, subject to
limited exceptions

* Asto items that are not included on the agenda,
Retirement Board members and staff may ask a question
for clarification, make a brief announcement, or make a
brief report. Retirement Board members may provide a
reference to staff or other resources for factual information,
request staff to report back to the body at a subsequent
meeting concerning any matter, or take action to direct
staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda

Govt. Code § 54954.2 10



Public Comment

* During each meeting, the Retirement Board must
allow public comment on each agenda item and on
other matters within the jurisdiction of the Board

Govt. Code § 54954.3(a) 1



S

Closed Session

* The Brown Act authorizes the Retirement Board to hold closed
sessions to discuss or take action on items under certain enumerated
circumstances

* Examples:

e The Retirement Board may meet in closed session to deliberate or take
action on the purchase or sale of a particular, specific pension fund
investment (Govt. Code § 54956.811-))

* The Retirement Board may meet in closed session on personnel
matters (Govt. Code §54957)

* The Retirement Board may meet in closed session with CCCERA’s
designated representatives regarding employees’ salaries, benefits but
cannot take final action in closed session (Govt. Code §54957.6)

e The Retirement Board may meet in closed session to confer with legal
counsel regarding pending litigation that has been formally initiated,
exposure to litigation against the retirement system or the board, and
to decide whether to initiate litigation (Govt. Code §54956.9)

» Confidentiality of Closed Sessions: Board members may not disclose
confidential information acquired by being present in a closed session to
a person not entitled to receive the information (Govt. Code §54963(a))

12



%nsequence of Vloia% =

Brown Act

* Criminal liability for individual Board members

¢ Civil remedies: civil actions to stop, prevent or
invalidate of the action of the Board

* Attorneys fees and costs awarded to plaintiff



nsequence of Violati
Brown Act

¢ Individual criminal liability:

Each Retirement Board member who attends a Retirement
Board meeting where action is taken in violation of any
provisions of the Brown Act, and where the member
intends to deprive the public of information to which the
member knows or has reason to know the public is
entitled under the Brown Act, is guilty of a misdemeanor.

Govt. Code § 54959

14



%nsequence of Vloia% =

Brown Act

* Civil remedies: Any person may commence an action
by mandamus, injunction, or declaratory relief for the
purpose of stopping or preventing violations or
threatened violations of the Brown Act.

Govt. Code § 54960



%nsequence of Vioia% =

Brown Act

* Civil remedies: Any person may commence an action
by mandamus or injunction for the purpose of
obtaining a judicial determination that an action taken
by a legislative body of a local agency is null and void.

* Prior to commencing the action, the person must
make a demand of the Board to cure or correct the
action

Govt. Code § 54960.1 16



%nsequence of Vioia% =

Brown Act

* A court may award attorney fees and costs to the
prevailing plaintiff

* A court may award attorney fees and cost to a
defendant public agency if the court finds that the
action against the agency for alleged Brown Act
violation was frivolous and lacking in merit.

Govt. Code § 54960.5 17



P———

Questions?



	agenda 11.04.15
	THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:

	Item 3
	Minutes 9.23.15
	Minutes 9.29.15
	Minutes 9.30.15

	Item 4
	Item 9
	Item 10

